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Adapted Podcast (00:00:00):
Content warning for child killings, genocide, emotional child abuse, and suicidal thoughts. Welcome to adopted podcast, season six, episode 12. Starts now,
JaeJin (00:00:27):
Feel the sun riser from below. I keep running. I keep running to a place where no one knows.
Adapted Podcast (00:00:36):
This is a podcast that centers the voices of Korean intercountry adoptees
(00:00:41):
Adopted people are the true experts in adoption. I'm Kimmie Lee, and I was adopted from Korea. Our voices have often been silenced by adoption agencies, governments, sometimes our adoptive parents, and a society that wants only a feel good story. Our lives are more complicated than that, and this is our takeback. You might have noticed, but I took a week off, not deliberately, but I recently went out of state on a trip to connect with friends and, uh, have some much needed social contact. We all need to take a break sometimes and change our routine, and that's exactly what I did. Thanks for your patience for waiting. Everything
Aneyah Elmore (00:01:24):
Was going great to this one little incident, and, and, and then all of a sudden it was just like excommunication.
Adapted Podcast (00:01:32):
Another reason for this delay is this next episode. It is heavy and it comes with a lot of pain, but Anya Elmore has adapted and has not only embraced her story. She's a fierce protector of it. Here's Anya.
Aneyah Elmore (00:01:54):
My name is Anya Elmore. I'm 56, and I live in Bowie, Maryland.
Adapted Podcast (00:02:01):
So, um, Anya, why don't we just start with what do you know about, you know, in Korea before you were adopted?
Aneyah Elmore (00:02:09):
I'll be honest with you, um, there's only one little very vague memory because I was adopted at three and a half. And the very vague memory that I have is being at the airport, getting ready to go in the airplane, and I was crying and I was holding onto who the, the female that was holding me was crying. I was holding onto that, I was afraid. And, um, I just remember that little scenario. That's it.
Adapted Podcast (00:02:49):
Okay. And I know you're reunited, right? Mm-hmm. What have you learned more about the circumstances about
Aneyah Elmore (00:02:58):
I have and, um, the circumstances was that my, um, biological father who was in the military, um, he was a soldier in the military. He was young, they were both young, and, um, he was a black soldier. He, they wanted to get married. Um, he tried to, and um, right before, I guess that they were going to finalize things because they did go get some counseling and see some people, and he got, um, deployed. He got sent away to, um, Germany and then to, to fight in Vietnam. And, um, they lost contact. So she just, this was right before she had me. So she was by herself. She, uh, waited to hear back from him. Like I said, he's in Vietnam, fighting in the war and the jungles, wherever they lost contact. And, um, she never heard from him again. She thought that he had died in Vietnam.
(00:04:06):
And so, um, of course, you know, for young women around that time in the sixties, of course it's taboo, you know. And then from where I'm from, it was extremely poor, um, young son, extremely poor. So it would've been very difficult. And me being mixed, it would've been very difficult life for her as well as myself. So she, um, placed me in the orphanage. And, um, she actually, at that time, I was a year and a half and she spoke with them. I thought I was only like a couple months old for all of these years. I thought I was three months old, dropped at the doorstep. That's just my story. That's what I had been telling everybody. And come to find out that was not true. I was a year and a half year, uh, that was a year and a half. And, um, so I knew her.
(00:05:01):
I had a relationship with her and a nurse that was taking care of me. And, um, she took me the year and she told them my name. I was actually given an American name cause I was like, I was excited when I was first thing. What's my name? What name were you given? Was Annie <laugh>? Annie? I was given Annie. But what happened during translation, because I guess ya is something that they put on the end of every child's name. And so when they did my paperwork, they just left the ya because it was Americans who did it, the camp Casey. And they left the Y on there because they didn't know. They were just like, oh, this is what they're calling this child <laugh>. And that's what, so it will evolve from Annie to a, so, and where were you born?
Adapted Podcast (00:05:56):
Were you, you born around like a camp town or?
Aneyah Elmore (00:05:59):
I was, yes, I was for a camp Casey, around Camp Casey.
Adapted Podcast (00:06:04):
Okay. And then who facilitated your adoption? Was it, um, you were, you were brought to an orphanage? Was it your, sorry. So many questions. Um, it's okay. Did your mother intend for you to be adopted or did she place you in the orphanage intending to come back for you?
Aneyah Elmore (00:06:20):
No, she placed me in the orphanage, um, intending for me to be adopted.
Adapted Podcast (00:06:28):
Okay. Yes. And, um, so what, in your paperwork when you're adopted, what did it say? Did it say anything about your story and was it false?
Aneyah Elmore (00:06:39):
It was all false. It was all false. And so for a long time I was, well, I knew it was false when I was young, um, because when I looked at it, I, it said that both of my parents were deceased and, well, no, that's not the reason why I knew it was false. I, it was false because both of my parents had Asian names. I'm like, I am not full Asian <laugh>. So, oh, so they
Adapted Podcast (00:07:06):
Actually had, they actually had names of your parents Yes. In your adoption paperwork? Yes. And they were Asian names.
Aneyah Elmore (00:07:13):
They were Asian names. And then actually I was given an Asian name of W y I E. And um, so that was allegedly my first last name. And then I had, was given another last name of Lee. So like I said, my paperwork was really, really, it was a mess. And so when I had to, years ago, when I found myself applying for this and applying for that, and they would look at my paperwork, I remember I applied for the police department and, and you know, you had to go through a background investigation. And I remember them looking and like, well, who are you? This name is, you know, there was so many different names in all of my paperwork. And then my social security, um, card. And then I had my name changed, and they were like, exactly, who are you? So I had, I faced a lot of issues regarding my name, and that's a part, part of a large part of somebody's identity, um, for many, many years.
(00:08:18):
Um, people not pronouncing my name correctly, because it used to be spelled differently. So I used to have a hyphen in it. The whole thing was a mess. And then I had an American name, Anne Marie. So for me, I really had this really big identity issue, starting with the name. So that's why when I first met her, I was like, what exactly is my name? I was excited to find out what my Korean name was, all to be let down <laugh>, let down with this, um, plane, plain American name, Annie. Like, could we not be more <laugh>, you know, creative, you know? So it's like, okay, so here I am, little Orphan Annie <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (00:09:07):
Oh, wow. Yeah. Um, and then who facilitated your adoption? Was it the military or Holt?
Aneyah Elmore (00:09:16):
It was not Holt, it was not, um, Korean Social Services. It was, I believe the military.
Adapted Podcast (00:09:24):
So, so like a private adoption?
Aneyah Elmore (00:09:26):
It was a private adoption. And that also is kind of disappointing because, um, I know that they have the, uh, the crib mates on, um, the crib mates on Facebook. And I can even be a part of that because I'm like, well, wait a minute, I'm, but all because I didn't come through, um, Korean social services. Yeah,
Adapted Podcast (00:09:48):
Right, okay. Mm-hmm. <affirmative>. Um, yeah. So how does a, a private adoption work?
Aneyah Elmore (00:09:58):
Um, I'm not exactly certain why it was private. Um, I think because my adoptive father, um, he was actually head of the orphan council at our orphanage, so he was a, um, it was a group of American, so, um, soldiers that volunteered to work at our orphanage volunteered to, you know, bring, they brought food, um, you know, they played with, uh, the kids, they brought clothing. And, um, so they kind of like sponsored the, uh, um, the orphanage through the, uh, the military. But my father is big, my adoptive father is big on volunteer volunteering, so I don't know if he started that or that already existed. So because of that, um, he had a great relationship with the head of the adoption, um, the orphanage. And so him, and I know one other Korean adoptee, and her adoption was also a private adoption. So all of my paperwork, I believe, was done by somebody at Camp Casey and through an, um, attorney in, um, in Maryland. So it went through kind of, I saw that there in my paperwork. Some of the paperwork went through the, the courts in, um, where my parents lived was drawn up by an attorney who happened to be one of our neighbors growing up, <laugh>, one of our neighbors. Um, so it was all drawn up by that attorney and taken through the courts and, um, you know, where my parents lived, that county. Um, but I think it was all on the Korean side, drawn up by Camp Casey. Mm-hmm. <affirmative> the military. Okay.
Adapted Podcast (00:11:55):
Yeah. What started your own Facebook group? Or, or with the title of your orphanage? Oh,
Aneyah Elmore (00:12:01):
We have one. That's how I was able to reconnect. Oh,
Adapted Podcast (00:12:04):
Oh, okay. So you, you started one or
Aneyah Elmore (00:12:07):
Some how I, how I reconnected with them was that for many years I looked for, you know, when the internet started, <laugh> started, um, for many years I had looked for information on, um, my orphanage and never found anything. And then just one day it was, I remember it was Christmas day and, um, I was just like putting in yk and then all of a sudden, or maybe something like that, Korean orphanage Yang j and all of a sudden, boom, my orphanage popped up and I said, get outta here. And I was so excited. I'm looking through it and I see pictures of me I've never, ever seen or had or, and I was just, oh my gosh, I was floored. I was crying. Um, and, uh, I saw that there were other comments from that other adoptees had left, you know, because they had seen this, um, website too.
(00:13:07):
And the website had actually been put together by a soldier, a volunteer soldier that was served the same time, same year, same time with my dad. So my adoptive father told me that my responsibility was to calm the babies. I would go around, I would kind of rock them in their swings. I would sh shush them, you know, like, calm them down. I'd whisper to them and he said they would always quiet down. So, and he used to say, you're a mother and I've got seven kids. I was a nanny. So that's just kind of like, I guess innate
Adapted Podcast (00:13:48):
You, and you have no memories of being at the orphanage.
Aneyah Elmore (00:13:52):
No memories at
Adapted Podcast (00:13:53):
All. Did any anything pop up to you when you saw these photos?
Aneyah Elmore (00:14:00):
Nothing, nothing popped up. But, you know, I had organized a zoom with, um, my sole brothers and sisters and, um, because we all were kind of like chatting away kind of on the, because not only do we have a Facebook group, we also have a messenger group. And so we had kind of like text back and forth on the messenger. And so one day I was like, Hey, let's do none. We organized a Zoom meeting. So when we hopped on the Zoom, it was like, Hey, you know, seeing one another for the first time. But I learned so much on that first zoom, and because there were older adoptees that older CADs from my orphanage that re had, and the memories were so tragic, it was horrible. It was tough listening to the memories they had of our orphanage. And I was like, oh my gosh, maybe that's why I blocked it out.
(00:15:08):
Um, because there were a lot of tragic things and, um, that happened from the orphanage. And, um, a lot of the, uh, cats that were there are, are have severe trauma issues. And I had trauma issues stemming from my, you know, being abandoned from my mother. Knowing her, I was like, oh, okay, well that explains a lot. You know, why I have these rejection and abandonment issues. It explains, I wasn't separated from you at like an infant. I knew you, I had a relationship with you. And, and then it explained also why in these pictures, I seem so distant from everybody and just kind of like in this every picture, I'm looking like a deer in headlights, um, to, we all had similar, oh my gosh, it mirrored our adoption stories. Now I'm hearing, okay, that all of these Korean adoptees had these horrific experiences, these adoption experiences.
(00:16:21):
My, um, OMA spoke to me on the phone not too recently, about a, a week or two ago, and she said that she was watching television, Korean television, Korean news, and that the, they were saying that the Korean government was saying that all of these, um, CADs were, you know, migrating back to live. Um, because they had these horrific, uh, adoption stories. They had these really bad issues with their, um, uh, adoptive families and that they were, a lot of them were, um, had be separated themselves from their adoptive families. And that's when I was hearing that in my group, I was so surprised how many people were, what's the word that I'm looking for, um, estranged from their adoptive families. And I had gone through that same experience for 10 years, but my, um, my sisters and brothers here, they were, they were all estranged from their families. I said, my God,
Adapted Podcast (00:17:48):
Like, let's say many people were in that call. And what percentage would you say were estranged?
Aneyah Elmore (00:17:56):
Um, I would say at that time, um, there were, at that time I believe there were six of us at, and then a seventh one joined on, now there's nine of us. They were all estranged. And I was, you know, here I'm thinking, okay, maybe this is just a westerner thing, you know, maybe this is just a US thing. And then, um, at that, at that first meeting, um, there was, uh, one other person, and he, our brother, there's only one brother right now that participates in the call, and he is from Belgium and or Germany when it, Germany. And I was so shocked to hear this is the one that started the group that was, you know, adopted as six months that he's estranged. And I'm like, wait a minute. You're, you're over in Germany and you had this, this white family, and you're estranged
Adapted Podcast (00:18:58):
Anya. Do you think it's having also to do with the fact that our adopted parents just did not know or understand that they were adopting a child with trauma and how to, you know, that maybe they weren't screened properly to be, um, able to care for a child with trauma?
Aneyah Elmore (00:19:19):
Um, oh, absolutely. A, absolutely. That's, you know, well, the first thing is, uh, that, but I, um, I'm eventually gonna write a book on this, but I, I, I'm a, I'm a strong believer that our thoughts create our reality. So when you take a a, a child that's in the orphanage that feels abandoned or rejected, that that's gonna be what we attract, that we're gonna attract these parents that, um, will somehow or another reject us in some form or fashion, or the fact that because we have this trauma, okay, fight and flight, the fight and flight response system, all right, this fear, this fear of rejection in the orphanage, not being picked, not being selected or whatever, that we're gonna continue that fight and flight response system until that cycle is broken. But now a addressing the parent parental issue, because my parents are prime example of not understanding, not being prepared.
(00:20:28):
So for my parents, my parents, um, and they tried, okay, they tried. Um, but I, my mother, and it seems like everybody had mother issues in my group. Everybody had mother issues. Once again, that's the rejection and abandonment coming from, you know, the, the mom. So, um, I remember my mother when I first came over, I remember the first day, by the way, I came to the us I remember meeting my mother, which is odd. I don't remember anything at the orphanage, but I remember my first day in the us. But, um, my mother was not nice to me at all. She was wicked, wicked. And she, she was mentally abusive. And here I am an innocent child. Okay? I didn't understand it. I, I don't know what her issue was. Maybe she was going through a menopause, I have no idea. But I came into a home where they had two other adopted children, US children. One was black, the other one was mixed. She, um, he was half black and half white. Anyway, I'm saying all that to say that child disappeared. The the boy,
Adapted Podcast (00:22:04):
You mean the one who was mixed race?
Aneyah Elmore (00:22:05):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (00:22:07):
He, he, he left her family.
Aneyah Elmore (00:22:09):
My, he was younger than me. We were, this was about, maybe I was four. And I remember my, my father leaving with him in the car and them driving off, and that's the last time I seen saw him. He was taken back to, I guess the orphanage. So I had for some reason, another that fear in me, but, and cuz my mother always say, sending you back to that place, you know, um, all types of things. But my parents started put, we once started going to group counseling. That was difficult. My parents get angry. Um, so, you know, we really couldn't be free to say anything. And then I went to private counseling, group counseling with other kids because, you know, yeah, this trauma issue, but it wasn't really, really addressed as trauma. It was not addressed as trauma. Nowhere that I remember in counseling was it addressed as trauma. And then at the same time, I had issues with learning. Now I discovered as an adult, just last year, I have, um, attention deficit disorder. And that also is a result of trauma.
Adapted Podcast (00:23:46):
What was the diagnosis at the time about you? Was it that you were
Aneyah Elmore (00:23:52):
Autistic, were troublemaker? <laugh>? The diag? There was no diagnosis. The diagnosis was that I was just some type of, um, looking for attention. And that was coming from my mom and dad. I was looking for attention because I started being rebellious. Okay. Um, I did, I, I think that at, at one point I just started, you know, ooh, a shiny thing. And my mom, you know, I was forbidden to go in my parents' room. My sister was allowed in there, but I was forbidden. So I'd, you know, like sneak in there and I'd see some shiny thing and I'd be like, oh, let me take this and put it in my, you know, my room or hide it.
Adapted Podcast (00:24:30):
And So they already had labeled you a problem child or,
Aneyah Elmore (00:24:33):
Yes. Yes. So that's what I became exactly. That
Adapted Podcast (00:24:40):
Your parents, uh, were African-American?
Aneyah Elmore (00:24:43):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (00:24:44):
Okay. And they adopted three children. Were, was it an infertility issue, do you think?
Aneyah Elmore (00:24:49):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (00:24:50):
Yes. And was it your mother's wish to even adopt?
Aneyah Elmore (00:24:56):
Remember I told you my dad was over there, right? <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (00:24:59):
Right, right.
Aneyah Elmore (00:24:59):
So he chose me. And then come to find out I was not the first choice. It was a boy that was the first choice. And that really hurt my feelings when I found out I wasn't the first choice. I think what the thing was that they said pushed me off on him and was like, you know, maybe I was cheaper <laugh>. I dunno, I think I heard something to that aspect that maybe I was cheaper.
Adapted Podcast (00:25:22):
It's gotta be devastating to learn that you weren't the one that they had wanted.
Aneyah Elmore (00:25:29):
Yeah.
Adapted Podcast (00:25:30):
What, what happened with that other child?
Aneyah Elmore (00:25:33):
I have no idea. I I absolutely have no idea. Um, there were, like I said, there were some, there was some things you could cut this out if you want to, but you do realize that, that, that there was a genocide going on with mixed children, because that's one of the traumas, um, that from our orphanage, that there was a genocide against mixed children because there was an order. And, um, from what I understand by the group that's doing the, the investigation
Adapted Podcast (00:26:05):
TRC cases.
Aneyah Elmore (00:26:06):
Yes. Okay. That they said
Adapted Podcast (00:26:08):
A Truth and Reconciliation commission.
Aneyah Elmore (00:26:10):
Yes, yes. They contacted our orphanage and they said there is record proof that there was genocide against mixed race children and that there was a command. Um, they, they, I've got the text somewhere, but they called it something I forgot. But basically they wanted a homogenous society, not a mixed society. So all of the children that were came from am, um, American soldiers, they said they were to get rid of them at whatever cost it was. So a lot of them were drowned. That's what actually started the diaspora. That's what actually started the, um, Korean adoption, because it was get those, get rid of these kids. That's when they started shipping them out, you know, putting them up for adoption, um, killing them. Um, from what I understand, there's mass graves. That's what the truth and recollection, um, committee, the young lady said that were mass graves.
(00:27:18):
And I was shocked. I mean, I just recently found out that there was, you know, all of that. I knew that there were, we knew that, that this was going on, but I didn't know to what extent. I also know that in my orphanage, there is a mixed, uh, she's, she's, um, blasian black, a um, black Asian like myself. She's older and she suffers severe trauma because she would see them being killed. Them, you know, the soldiers coming to our orphanage and shooting them. And she was afraid because she was aging out. And, um, so she, she remembers the last boy that was killed that they came and like, almost before dawn, and they would come and they sh shot this, this boy in the head. And, um, she remembers that. And she was, I think she remembers that particular one vividly because, um, she, she was starting to age out. And so, um, she said that there was a priest that came and spoke with, um, the head of her orphanage and begged, no, no, when her adoptive father came, the priest was there and begged him to take her out of the orphanage. She said, he said, you don't have to per se adopt her, but take her out of here so she can have a chance to live.
Adapted Podcast (00:28:45):
Wow. That is shocking. So this adoptee was an eyewitness.
Aneyah Elmore (00:28:54):
She was an eyewitness. And so the Truth and Recco Reconciliation Committee, they wanted her to testify, but she's too traumatized to. Um, and when, when they came to our group and asked, and when, when they shared, this was just so recently when they shared with me everything, when they verified and they said, we have proof of this, and we had these mask graves. Let me tell you something. I broke down. I remember just having this, oh my gosh, I cried. I was so upset. I cried and cried. I remember for her, and for like two days straight, I just cried. And my daughter, she said to me, she's, she's like, mom, we can't have this. You've come through so much with your trauma. And she said, you right now are experiencing, um, survivors, survivors remorse. And I was, I was experiencing, because I realized, yeah, you're right, that I was, I was having survivor's remorse.
Adapted Podcast (00:30:11):
Oh, that you felt guilt for having survived it when others did not.
Aneyah Elmore (00:30:15):
Yes. Wow. Yes. And, um, sh uh, and so I would, when I, I couldn't allow myself to go down that.
Adapted Podcast (00:30:33):
Oh,
Aneyah Elmore (00:30:34):
Yeah.
Adapted Podcast (00:30:35):
Are are you seeking, do you have, are you seeking counseling?
Aneyah Elmore (00:30:39):
No, I do a lot of meditating. I'm not seeking counseling, but I do a tremendous bit of meditation.
Adapted Podcast (00:30:46):
What kinds of things do you do?
Aneyah Elmore (00:30:50):
Um, I really work on my healing. I just had a really traumatic experience with my, with my alma, where she ghosted me again. And that was really, that's just recent, like this week Mm. That I had. Yeah, I had an experience with her, and this was part of my healing, and I realized this later after she did this. But you, she wanted me to make up the story or something, something or another where something is, they were, she wanted me to validate some type of story that I was born in the US versus Korea. And I was like, I'm not getting involved in that. I'm gonna stand in my truth. And my truth is, I was born in Korea. I am a Korean adoptee, and I am n if y'all wanna have that story over there, okay, that's fine. But if anybody asks me, I am not gonna lie about my identity. I'm not nothing about it. Because once I start lying about my identity, then it becomes also my age. You know, because you came over to the US at such and such a timeframe, I'm not gonna do that. And so she got upset with me because I was gonna do this interview.
(00:32:21):
Oh, right
Adapted Podcast (00:32:21):
Here. Oh, talking with me.
Aneyah Elmore (00:32:23):
Yes. And she got upset with me because she was like, she doesn't want, you know how the Asians are just very, very proud, you know, and, and all of this. And, and I said, listen, she wasn't listening, didn't understand. And then the next thing I know, I mean, there's this back and forth. I'm crying. I'm saying, it took me so long to even reach out to you because I didn't even know if I was gonna be accepted by your family. And this all boiled onto rejection issues. Anyway, so I'm saying all that to say that sh she didn't call me. I, I called her back. I said, listen, I gotta go cuz she really upset me. I was crying. She really upset me. And I called her back to tell her, listen, I love you. She didn't pick up the phone for several times. I called, I said, okay, didn't call me back.
(00:33:23):
Didn't call me back, didn't call. I'm sitting here waiting and I'm so going through these. It, it, it all came out crying for days, crying for days going through these abandonment issues. This woman abandoned me. This woman has turned her back on me and rejected me. I was, I went from being so upset and disappointment to angry, like all these emotions. And it was all the finally orchestrated because it was like part of my healing and, and it was a purge. And so I remember talking to my daughter and I just, you know, I'm like talking to you like this, kind of like, you know, all of a sudden I just bust out crying. And she said, let it, let it go. Let it release it, release it. And I understood at that moment, because I'm very, very spiritual and I understood at that moment, well, I knew bef prior to that, that I was going through a purge.
(00:34:33):
And I knew cuz she said, release, release. And these were emotions that I needed to release. I needed to let go of this because I had so much fear in me. And I've been seeing for a while in my meditation and, and in my prayers, Hey, release me of this fear. I've had this fear locked up inside me since I was a child, since I was a child, probably when my oma dropped me off at that orphanage. I've had this fear. I grew up in my house fearful. And so it's just like releasing this fear of abandonment, this fear of rejection, just releasing it. And it was a great, great healing experience for me because I remember being in meditation and this older version of me, I saw this, this older version of me went to the little girl in the orphanage. And I remember the dress and the pictures, the dress in the pictures was the same dress that I brought to the us.
(00:35:45):
And I remember going to her, I had this vision going to her and hugging her and holding her and telling her that I was gonna protect her and that she was safe and she was loved. And at that moment, my, I understood my mama issues because I had the issues with my adoptive mother and now my, my biological mother. And I understood at that very moment that this version of me that you see right now at 56, that I'm the mama. I'm your mama little girl. I'm your mama. And you know what, I'm gonna love you unconditionally. I'm gonna protect you. I'm here for you. And it was just amazing, most amazing experience.
Adapted Podcast (00:36:37):
You know, Anya, I think it's really powerful that, that you came to this realization that you had to be the mother to that hurt child. I went through something similar myself that, you know, l looking externally for these other quote unquote mothers to give us something that we need and weren't getting, uh, you know, and being, feeling rejected by external sources. It's, it's like a pain we live with. And, um, kind of taking that back for ourselves. That, that you could be that person Exactly. To show up for yourself.
Aneyah Elmore (00:37:13):
Exactly. I was the nurturer, the protector at that very moment. I realized it, it came to this aha moment when I saw that vision. That's why I said that this whole thing was divinely orchestrated that, you know, the abandonment issues came up. And I'm sitting here, this part of this purge, the purge is important, <laugh>. And, and, and, and I, I realized I saw it. It was just like, I'm going to nurture you. I'm gonna unconditionally love you. I'm going to protect you. And, and yes, and it came to this, yes, I am my, the own divine mother, you know? And it was like something I had been always looking for externally. And it comes from within. It's amazing. And now, now I remember driving this down, riding down the street this morning, and all of a sudden I felt this fear creep up into me. And then I heard that little voice within me. And it was, it was the mother within me that was like, relax, relax, relax. I got you. I got you. And not only was it the mother in me, but I saw the older version of me and just coming and comforting me and like, relax, relax. And so my, my response system, because the response system is so important, is now shifting
(00:38:48):
And, you know, that fight and flight response system is shifting and the fear is lifting.
Adapted Podcast (00:39:44):
You know, I think it's so, um, you know, powerful as well that, I mean, I'm, I'm, I'm, I'm very sorry if I this participating in this interview or this, this chat with me, um, caused, uh, you know, some conflict with your Oma. Um, but I think it's also, um, really powerful that, you know, you grew up without knowing the answers to either identity and where you came from, and simple things like your name and, um, all of that to grow up with not knowing all your life. And then now you're in the knowing and someone is saying, no, we want you to change your story. I really applaud you for, I mean, I can understand and really empathize with you for, um, just that you can't do that, that, that, that the truth is more powerful.
Aneyah Elmore (00:41:01):
It it, and it is. And I, I, I had to, I had to say to her, because it was, you know, why do you have to do this? And why do you have to do that? And, and I finally, you know, I was like, look, this interview has nothing to do with you. This interview has everything to do with me and my community. I have an obligation to my community to help them to share my story and to help them because they are, there's a lot of us that are traumatized. So period, I am going to, and I let it make, I said, listen, I've been doing, doing interviews. I've been speaking out openly for the last 10 years, and I'm not gonna stop. And I, and you better get used to it because it's gonna get even bigger than this. Okay? I'm just really getting warm up.
(00:41:53):
You're getting, you're getting warmed up. <laugh>, I'm getting warmed up. I was like, I'm writing a book. Why are you gonna write a book? I'm like, you have no idea. I said, I, I was born a big, a big thinker. So I'm just getting warmed up. Nobody's gonna stop me. This is who I am. I'm 56 years old. You just coming back and let me tell you something. This is who I am. Period. Like it or leave it. And, and, and, and I spoke about shame, being ashamed of, you know, being ashamed. I'm like, listen, I've made mistakes in my past. Okay. But I have given myself grace, all right? As a teenage mother, all right? A, a high school dropout. I made a lot of mistakes. But guess what? Those were learning experiences. I'm not gonna be ashamed of them. I've given myself grace.
(00:42:48):
And every one of those experiences, they have built my character. I love myself, love every single mistake that I made. I love it because you know what? Every hardship, because they have built my character. I'm, I am a strong woman. I am a courageous woman. And this is who I'm, I'm not going to lie about who I am. I'm not. And you know what I've learned also from this experience, I also learned from this ex experience that I don't need to cover up for anybody else. You know what, guess what? You didn't treat me nice. I used to cover up that family secret. Not anymore, because that's part of my story. Cuz I realize I'm not the only one. All these other cats out here, alright? They were not being treated nice by their family too. So why hide the truth? Why am I going to hide the truth to protect you? No, guess what? My parents too were also alright, uh, mentally and verbally abusive to me. My father apologized. I have one parent who hasn't yet, who hasn't yet. My father is humble and apologized. Him. It's like I could have been a better parent. I love him. I love him. I grew to love him. I to love my mother. Okay? Don't get me wrong. I love my biological mother, but you know what, I'm gonna reset them boundaries. <laugh> with her <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (00:44:28):
And we were talking, you're talking about your adoptive family with the
Aneyah Elmore (00:44:31):
Yes. My adoptive family. I love my father. My father is my hero. But I had to grow to that. I had to grow to that. I had to forgive him for many things. And we, you know, that, that time that I, I became estranged for them. That's when he realized all the fault and mistakes that he made. And he, when I came back, it was like a different person between the both of us.
Adapted Podcast (00:44:55):
But it was only possible because he acknowledged how he had treated you, right? The abuse.
Aneyah Elmore (00:45:02):
Yes, yes, yes. My mother calmed down. And I think because my dad kind of sets, you know, like disappointment. I was like, she's the reason, you're the reason why she's gone. But, um, you know, I still love my parents, my adoptive parents. I love my adoptive parents. And even with my, my, with my oma, I told her, I said, listen, I'm very forgiving. If I wasn't forgiving, you wouldn't be in my life. And neither would my biological father. I'm a very, very, very forgiving person. I love, I love my family.
Adapted Podcast (00:45:54):
Um, I wanted to go back to one thing you were talking about before, and then we can go into your family, um, more. Um, when you said there was the, uh, uh, what did you call it? The, um, the racial
Aneyah Elmore (00:46:15):
Oh, the genocide
Adapted Podcast (00:46:16):
People. Yes. Genocide. Yes. The genocide. So that the years, well, the genocide was happening. So is it, who was, who was killing the children? Were they orphanage? Were, was it the c was it the Korean military or the US military?
Aneyah Elmore (00:46:31):
Um, the, so soldiers, the Korean soldiers. Korean soldiers.
Adapted Podcast (00:46:37):
The Korean soldiers. So they had been told by their Yes,
Aneyah Elmore (00:46:42):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (00:46:42):
Government or the state that they had a mission to carry out, to get rid of. Yes. I e kill.
Aneyah Elmore (00:46:49):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (00:46:50):
Uh, mixed race children.
Aneyah Elmore (00:46:51):
Get rid of them. And it was almost like, I don't know if it was, um, people were turning a blind eye. It, I don't know. But it was that order, um, the what's that organization? Ts
Adapted Podcast (00:47:06):
Oh, the Truth and Reconciliation Commission. Yes. T R C.
Aneyah Elmore (00:47:09):
Yes. T r c. They have a lot more information as to who it was and what the, what the name. There was a specific name for the, the, the to C carry out the mission, A specific name.
Adapted Podcast (00:47:26):
Okay, so it was a state ordered mission.
Aneyah Elmore (00:47:30):
Yes. And it was like, get rid of them, don't care what you do with them. It was like, throw 'em in the ocean, do this, you know, get, get 'em out of this country. And so that's, that's what they were doing. And, um, yeah. Yeah.
Adapted Podcast (00:47:45):
And then I, the other question about your Oma wanting you to just recently want to tell a different story about, about how you, you know, came to be. What do you, why would, would it be more favorable for her, for the story to be that you were born in the us?
Aneyah Elmore (00:48:06):
I think it was more favorable for her to, um, so she wouldn't look, uh, so I don't know. She would, she her pride, you know what I'm saying? Sh that she would look older when she had me. But no, because she took, she just told my cousin what age she had mean. I don't know. I really don't know. It's just weird. And then she said she didn't make up that story. She said that her sister did. I don't know, the whole thing is really, really confusing to me. All I know is that, but you know what? Her family does love me. You know, from what I understand, they're so happy for her cuz she's the only one that didn't have children. There's six of them. Okay. They're so happy for her because she's the only one that didn't have children. And they're like, oh, so excited to meet me and see me, and that I'm not coming with a lie. <laugh>, I'm not, I come up with the full truth because I am so proud of who I am, you know? And my niece, not my niece, my cousin said to me, I wanna learn more about your community. I want, I I had no idea that your community had so many, um, issues with their adoptions. And she was like, she was crying. She was crying. And she says, I need to learn about
Adapted Podcast (00:49:40):
This. Which, which cousin? Your a Korean cousin?
Aneyah Elmore (00:49:42):
Yes, my Korean cousin. And as a matter of fact, when she found out about me, she had no clue that I was mixed. She, she didn't know from months until she saw me. And then she was like, oh my god, you're mixed <laugh>. Wow. Um, but um, yeah, it's, she, I, she said I wanted to know more about the Korean adoptee community, and I thought that was so sweet. It was very endearing. So why am I gonna sit and lie and say I'm not that I wasn't born in Korea? Why <laugh>? No. People are gonna find out the truth because I'm talking just like I'm talking to you now.
Adapted Podcast (00:50:21):
Okay. Um, okay. Take us back. Anier. You, you were, you arrived at three,
Aneyah Elmore (00:50:31):
Three and a half mm-hmm. <affirmative>. I arrived here in the three and a half.
Adapted Podcast (00:50:34):
Where where did you land?
Aneyah Elmore (00:50:36):
Um, in Maryland. Not too far from where I am now. Okay. I smacked 15 minutes down the road. Oh my, uh, my dad was stationed at, uh, the Pentagon. And um, so we lived right outside of Andrews Air Force base. I grew up kind of a military bra rat. Lemme just say I didn't travel, but I, um, my dad being an officer, we did a lot of things on base.
Adapted Podcast (00:51:02):
So he was kind of high up. Maybe
Aneyah Elmore (00:51:05):
He was very, very high up actually when he retired. He was, um, right below general.
Adapted Podcast (00:51:11):
Okay. So the military, the Pentagon was kind of like over the shadow of your family, like very much there in the presence mm-hmm. <affirmative>. Mm-hmm. <affirmative>. And was your mother a stay-at-home mom or did she have a career?
Aneyah Elmore (00:51:25):
Yeah, no, she, her career was US <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (00:51:28):
Oh yeah. And that is a prayer too. I don't mean to reply. Motherhood is not a career. It is a career too.
Aneyah Elmore (00:51:34):
Yeah. Yeah. Her career was us because, you know, even though I had this like childhood that I explained about, I will say this about my mom, because my mom, let me tell you, pH she was, she, she may have had all of those head issues, but my mom, she really was that career mom. I mean, she was the chauffeur, she was this, she was that the chef, everything. And Emmy tell you, we were in charm school. We, I left a privileged life and I had to tell my adoptive family that. So yeah, you know, first I painted this really good picture, you know, the picture that I told you, you know, because I didn't want them to know what I went through. And then I had to add some things up in there, you know. But no, I did live a privileged life, but it was a difficult life.
(00:52:22):
I, I wanted to a couple points, um, commit suicide, run away. And as, as a matter of fact, that's how I left the house. I ran away. But, you know, other than that, you know, I was in ballet, I was in orchestra, I went to private schools, um, went to officer's club on base, you know, all of those things. They, and I went to counseling for years, you know, they, so that part of, you know, I did live kind of a very privileged life, but it was difficult. It was difficult mentally, you know, with the, um, um, my mother talked about me like a dog, you know, she didn't sh and, and then I was in my sister's shadow. Um, you know, my sister excelled at everything. She was an adoptee, but she was, you know, adopted as like an newborn. So she has a different adoption experience. But a lot of, uh, there was a, from what I understand, there wasn't a lot of food they had. And that explains a lot of the food issues that I had coming here. And the other orphans from my, uh, um, orphanage, they had food issues as well. You know, just
Adapted Podcast (00:53:38):
What were your, what were your food issues? Oh
Aneyah Elmore (00:53:40):
My gosh. I ate, like, I just came out of prison. <laugh>, <laugh>. Like, there, there was no food tomorrow, <laugh>. And then I would find, find stuff on the floor and out in the store anywhere. You know, I'd pick candy up off the floor and eat it. And this is stuff that we didn't orphanage, you know, we'd, from what I understand, just so hungry that we would eat whatever it was off the ground. Bugs. Um, flying dragon flies. There were three people that had this story of the flying dragon flies. They're just like, what? Are you serious? Everybody had the same story about being hungry, the older kids, um, the eating bugs, you know, eating, picking stuff up off the floor, eating it. I used to do the same thing when I came here. It was, I was gross. I was disgusting. I would do the most nastiest things. And
Adapted Podcast (00:54:36):
Do you think maybe that was one of the things your adoptive mother judged you about some of this behavior?
Aneyah Elmore (00:54:42):
I have. I, I really don't know. Yeah.
Adapted Podcast (00:54:45):
I don't know. Okay. Well, let, tell, tell us a more, what was that home life like? You talked about being mentally and verbally or emotionally and verbally abused. What kinds of things would
Aneyah Elmore (00:54:59):
They do? Okay, so with my, with my mother, I recall when, when incident were, um, I was in kindergarten, so what, that's four, about five years old. And, um, I remember asking her, you know, what can I wear to school? What should I be wearing to school today? And so she sarcastically said to me, or I'm five years old, I remember this, she sarcastically said to me, well, she didn't say that sarcastically. She told me to go put on what I came here with, came to this country. And so
Adapted Podcast (00:55:35):
Why?
Aneyah Elmore (00:55:37):
I don't know.
(00:55:39):
And so she said, go put on what you came to this country with. And so I went upstairs and I put it on, and, you know, I came here three and a half. I'm five years old now, and they were high waters this little, because I came with two outfits, a dress and another little, um, outfit, pants outfit them. Those pants were high waters on me. And so was the, the shirt was the sleeves were, you know, high. And so I came downstairs, you know, kind of dressed, ready to go to school because I thought she was serious. She got so angry with me, I mean, furious with me and, um, dragged me back up the steps to change. Um, she used to talk about my facial features, told me my face was flat as a pancake. Like somebody rolled over it with a, um, you know, one of them steam rollers. And she would laugh at my, you know, my facial features. And, um, I remember one time, and I've heard this through other adoptees that, oh, my mother was a prostitute. And, and
Adapted Podcast (00:56:50):
Oh, that your mother would tell that story? Yes.
Aneyah Elmore (00:56:53):
You know, but my alma wasn't, um, but yeah, your mom, she either said was, or it was one of those was a prostitute or, um, was probably a prostitute type of thing. And that she didn't want me and that, and threatening to send me back all the time. I wish I could, but I can't because whatever, um, that it was a whole lot of just, oh my gosh, I remember one time she dragged me down the steps by my hair and turned on the oven, threatened to put me in the oven and burned me up. Yeah. And I was in elementary school and like I said, five years old, what did I do? What could I possibly have done so wrong to be treated like that. It was awful.
Adapted Podcast (00:57:46):
Well, I'm, I'm sorry. I mean, I I I'm sure that's just even just the icing or I mean, just you broke, just broke the surface on probably what your experience is. Um, did you grow up with a positive feeling about your Asian identity or with all of this kind of,
Aneyah Elmore (00:58:09):
Uh, I was always making, no, no, I was
Adapted Podcast (00:58:12):
No. Cause making all these comments, you know, if you have your mother making these comments about Korea and your mother being a prostitute and your facial features being not attractive, you know, I could imagine you grew up just not wanting, you know, hating this, this Korean, your Korean side. Absolutely
Aneyah Elmore (00:58:32):
Not. And then not only that, I lived in a, uh, a black community and, and let me tell you something, a middle class black community, these kids would always tease me and say racial things to me all the time. All the time. And, um, you know, Bruce Lee's sister and all these horrible things to me. But nope, I was always proud. Always proud. And you know, where I think that came from, I think that came from my father. I think my father was the one that was proud of me being, um, Korean always. And so he, I got that from him. So I was, nope, nope, I was always proud of who I was.
Adapted Podcast (00:59:21):
<affirmative>. And had your mother lived in Korea or was it only your father that was over there?
Aneyah Elmore (00:59:26):
My adoptive mother.
Adapted Podcast (00:59:29):
Adoptive, no, no mother.
Aneyah Elmore (00:59:30):
Yeah. My, when my dad was, um, commissioned over there, my, um, adoptive mother was in Maryland taking care of the two other adopted children.
Adapted Podcast (00:59:43):
And so that, that strikes me as maybe, you know, the fact that your adoptive father had lived in Korea and had that experience and that your adoptive mother hadn't. So it was just sort of in her head what she imagined the, the kind of, you know, false things she imagined about Korea. She would just try to, um, project onto you. Yeah,
Aneyah Elmore (01:00:09):
She was just, oh, no, I, I, like I said, she didn't like me, um, when I was a child. She's grown to like me. She's grown to love me. Um, uh, and I know that,
Adapted Podcast (01:00:23):
Hmm, you didn't, yeah, you didn't feel loved to
Aneyah Elmore (01:00:25):
Me. Oh my God, no. No. I didn't grow up feeling loved. And I, at, at times I was like this woman jealous of me and my relationship with my father. She, she tried to always make, get me in trouble with my dad, um, all the time. But, um, no, my father, I, people always ask me, well, how old were you when you knew you were adopted? I always knew I was adopted. I always knew I was adopted. I always knew I was, um, Korean. I always knew all of that. And my dad is the one who was just like proud and, you know, oh, bringing home cans of kimchi and are, um, things of kimchi and my mother like, ugh, that's stinks. You know, making these comments. And I loved when he brought <laugh> kimchi. And I have this distinct remembrance of kimchi from Korea. So I'm very kimchi finicky. If it doesn't taste like kimchi that I remember in Korea, I don't like it. <laugh>
Adapted Podcast (01:01:24):
Doesn't cut it. Well, and that's maybe something, maybe your mother was jealous of the fact that you and your father shared Korea. Yeah.
Aneyah Elmore (01:01:34):
Yeah. I
Adapted Podcast (01:01:35):
As
Aneyah Elmore (01:01:36):
An experience. Yeah. But you know what? I don't think she wanted more than one child. And, and you know, it might have been kind of unfair to her that maybe my dad wanted, you know, the three or more than the one because she's just, even now, she's just fine with my sister <laugh>. I'm basically a guest. I gotta schedule an appointment to come over to the house. And if I'm, if I'm late, I get in trouble.
Adapted Podcast (01:02:07):
How did you reunite with your Oma?
Aneyah Elmore (01:02:10):
Um, for many years I wanted to find her and then all of a sudden I came to this place, um, on my healing journey that to a place of understanding, well, I don't need her to complete me, so I don't need to go find her anymore. I don't need her her to complete me. And then my husband was like, nagging me, nagging me, nagging me. Are you sure? I think you should go find her. Cuz he wanted a Korean mother-in-law, <laugh>. And so, um, the, so one day I was like, okay, you know what? Maybe sh she needs me to complete her. Let me just go up and reach her. And so I found a television show called, um, relative Race, and I contacted them. I had enough information, by the way. And the reason why I had the information was my DNA n was on Ancestry. And my first cousin found me on Ancestry. And so he texted me through Facebook Messenger and was like, I'm your first cousin, blah, blah, blah, blah, blah. And so he didn't wanna speak to me, he just wanted to text. So we exchanged all these texts and it was a great conversation through the text. And
Adapted Podcast (01:03:24):
Was this a Korean American or Korean? Yeah,
Aneyah Elmore (01:03:26):
He was Korean. He was Korean American. He's, he's half white. And the reason why I say that is I think that full-blooded Koreans okay, that I think there might be this thing about knowing we're not gonna do the DNA thing because there were, on my ancestry registry, there was like 5,000 people on my dad's side and nobody on my Korean side, right? Nobody. And so, um, anyway, he, um, told me my mom's information and my aunt's information, all of their names and everything. And he was like, yeah, she lives over here in the Bay Area and blah, blah, blah, blah, blah. And you have folks out in la. And I was like, oh, okay. But then he goes to me
Adapted Podcast (01:04:12):
And how did he figure out who your mother was? I mean, did he ask around or did people, did people remember?
Aneyah Elmore (01:04:21):
No. Oh, no, no, no, no. He kept me secret. He, he said he told his mother, but he kind of figured it out because he was like, you're how old and blah, blah, blah. And he wanted to know more information about me. Like, it's this black girl <laugh>, right? I've never, I've never seen her, I've never, what is going on here?
Adapted Podcast (01:04:47):
So he figured out who your mother was on his own.
Aneyah Elmore (01:04:49):
Okay. Yes, yes. He figured it out. And so, like I said, he ghosted me and so I couldn't figure this out. He wouldn't gimme any information and it took none and I couldn't figure out anything. So here was like five years later, I contacted this show and I said, here's all the information that I got from my cousin, cuz I had her name. Not that my biological father gave me a picture of her and gave me her former Korean name. And so they found her and reunited us. What year
Adapted Podcast (01:05:26):
Was
Aneyah Elmore (01:05:26):
This? But she didn't wanna be on the show. What year
Adapted Podcast (01:05:28):
Was this?
Aneyah Elmore (01:05:28):
This was last year, April of last year. April. So it's not even been a year.
Adapted Podcast (01:05:35):
So they found her. Yeah, they found her. No, she didn't wanna be on the show. Then
Aneyah Elmore (01:05:42):
What happened? Yeah, they, they tried to beg her, beg her. And then finally they called me and they're like, listen, we found jma. I was like, what? And they're like, yes. And she was really sweet and blah, blah, blah and cute. And we flew out and met with her and tried to ask her to, you know, we took her your picture and everything and, and the video that you did. And, and, and she was crying. Her, her sister was there and they were crying together. And, and, and, and she, she don't wanna be on the show. All she wants is you. She calls us like all the time saying, Hey, you know, I wanted to speak to my daughter. I wanted to, I don't wanna be on the show. I don't wanna be on a show, just want her. So, um, they're like, we don't think it's fair to, you know, to keep her from you. So, and she called me and called me every since every day.
Adapted Podcast (01:06:37):
On what day? Do you remember what day that was that she called you?
Aneyah Elmore (01:06:40):
I, it was at the beginning. I don't remember exactly what day, but it was at the beginning of April and I think she was at my house two weeks later. She flew out to my house two. As a matter of fact, not only did she actually delayed her visit because she found out my biological father wanted to come up and see her. So here was all of a sudden, now it wasn't just me, it was my bio bi, my biological father was coming to, so they met at my house and my, uh, my, my stepmother, everybody was reunited at my house. Pretty amazing. <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (01:07:20):
That is amazing. But how did you find your biological father?
Aneyah Elmore (01:07:25):
Another television show, <laugh> through another television show called, um, this time next year, um, they found him because I couldn't find him through my, uh, d n a, um, the one of my first cousins just to match up with him. They, they didn't know who even their parent was. So, um, the detective, his name is his name, because I'm saying this because he found, I put two other, three other queen adoptees in contact with him, and he's, they found, he's found their family. So his name is Jay. Um, and his IG is birth parent Finder. He's on Instagram and he's on TikTok and YouTube birth parent finder. And he's been successful in finding three other Korean adoptee families. So, but he was the detective for the television show and, um, he found, he found out he real quick <laugh> who my dad was.
Adapted Podcast (01:08:31):
Wow. So tell us, um, what was that first conversation like with your Oma? I, I imagine she spoke some English because she maybe just a little Oh, perfect
Aneyah Elmore (01:08:43):
English. Yeah, cuz come to find out. Um, I, I'm going to still say I am the first generation immigrant <laugh>. I'm gonna say I'm the first generation. And the reason why I say that is I came here, we came here the same year in 1970.
Adapted Podcast (01:09:02):
Oh, she immigrated to the us?
Aneyah Elmore (01:09:04):
Yes. Oh, she's
Adapted Podcast (01:09:06):
Here. Wow.
Aneyah Elmore (01:09:08):
We immigrated the same year, but I came in February. She came like in the November, cuz she got married to somebody, um, two years or whatever after, um, she put me in the orphanage. So she f um, married a another soldier and immigrated here in this in 70.
Adapted Podcast (01:09:28):
Okay. And never had kids. Never had She never had kids.
Aneyah Elmore (01:09:35):
She was, she, she was, uh, I don't know, unable to Okay. After me, but, um, so she was like, my only child, yes. I'm gonna, you know, and she told me that is what made, really made the easy decision for her to say embrace me. She told me that. But, um, yeah, it was, it, it was surprising. But no, let me tell you something about her. She speaks English, but it's extremely hard to understand her. Cuz she has a very, very thick accent because she's, everything is Korean. She laughs about this all the time. Her television <laugh>, right. Her radio, her food, her whole community is Korean. So she doesn't speak a too much with the English community. So her accent is like super, super thick. I'm like, what, what did she say? Say that again. All right. Spell it <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (01:10:36):
But Wow. To be able to communicate with her right, right away without a translator.
Aneyah Elmore (01:10:43):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (01:10:43):
That's crazy. Um, so how long, uh, from when sh that phone call then, how long was it until you actually met?
Aneyah Elmore (01:10:54):
Two weeks.
Adapted Podcast (01:10:54):
Okay. So she flew to see you.
Aneyah Elmore (01:10:57):
Yes.
Adapted Podcast (01:10:58):
What was that like?
Aneyah Elmore (01:11:00):
Um, when I met her at the airport, because my husband was the first one who spot her, he is like, that's her right there, <laugh>.
(01:11:11):
And I was like, really? Really? I wanna, I was scared to port approach this woman. Yes. And, um, because she wasn't the only Asian person that came off the planes, so we just kind of left, kept looking, but he knew that was her and I was scared. And so he goes up to her first and she's like, yeah, yeah. And, um, and so then I come over real shy and I think it was kind of like awkward at first, you know? And, um, it's kind of awkward at first. And, and then she came here and I think, I think what broke the ice, I think kind of was the, when she first came here, she just immediately opened up her suitcase and was like, I've got gifts for you. And they were a slew of furs and I they were
Adapted Podcast (01:12:05):
What?
Aneyah Elmore (01:12:06):
A slew of fur coats.
Adapted Podcast (01:12:07):
Fur coats,
Aneyah Elmore (01:12:09):
Yes. And I was like, what is this? What's going on here? And, and, and, and I asked, you know, like, it was a video. What is this? And people like, that's an a normal Asian thing. A normal Asian thing to bring
Adapted Podcast (01:12:24):
For coats
Aneyah Elmore (01:12:25):
And that No. To bring
Adapted Podcast (01:12:27):
Lavish gifts. Lavish gifts
Aneyah Elmore (01:12:29):
To Yes. To their kids. And I was like, that's good to know.
Adapted Podcast (01:12:35):
Do you think it might have been some of her? You know, I, I, I can imagine some guilt
Aneyah Elmore (01:12:39):
Too. I was wondering that too, you know, because I was like, what exactly is this? And it was like, no, that's a normal Asian thing. And I was like, okay, well let me get, let me, let me, you know, be prepared on my end to be, I guess spending lavishly too. But, um, no, that kind of like broke the ice. And I think that's what it kind of was. So she wanted to, once she got back to the house, it was like, Hey, we're gonna discuss this. And, you know, over, because I think that's what Koreans I read before that Asians express love differently. They don't really say it outwardly. They do it through like food and,
Adapted Podcast (01:13:23):
Um, like money
Aneyah Elmore (01:13:25):
Yeah. And stuff like that. Oh, let me tell you something. She came to this house and she saw something different. She saw us hugging and we hugged her. We were all over her hugging her and hugging one another because I'm, I'm, I'm, I'm a hugger. So she saw a lot of that. And she became used to that. Even my, my, my, she met my, my, um, my biological fa father, excuse my stepmother. My stepmother. She was trying to hold shake hands with my stepmother. And she was like, Uhuh nude, you know, she from that south, no hug and gave her this great big hug. Yeah. So my, my cousin said, since she's been back, she's like, oh, that's what's different. <laugh>. <laugh>. She said, because she came back to California, all of a sudden she's like very, you know, holding hands.
Adapted Podcast (01:14:17):
She's hugged more hugging. Like affectionate. Affectionate. Yeah. Okay.
Aneyah Elmore (01:14:22):
Yeah. So,
Adapted Podcast (01:14:24):
Um, and how was it meeting your father?
Aneyah Elmore (01:14:28):
Um, oh wow. I cried. I cried. Yeah. It was because he was the first one I met and I just like bust out crying. And I never really thought about looking for him, never thought about it. It just never entered my mind. But he was the first, you know, that, that's how the family was the first that popped up on my, so I was like, okay, well he must know some information about her. I, not just her, what's my story? I need to know my story. And that was, I think the most important thing for me, meeting both parents was a parent was, Hey, tell me more about myself. You know, when was I born? What is my real name? So, uh, they're a little d few days off on my, the, um, the orphanage gave me February 22nd, but myoma says February 26th. Um, so now I got two birthdays. Maybe I get two cakes. <laugh>,
Adapted Podcast (01:15:36):
Why not <laugh>? So did your biological dad, he, did he know about you?
Aneyah Elmore (01:15:44):
Yeah, he did.
Adapted Podcast (01:15:47):
Okay.
Aneyah Elmore (01:15:47):
Yeah. Yeah, he did. Um,
Adapted Podcast (01:15:52):
So there's that, there's something there too, where he kind of abandoned you too. Mm-hmm. <affirmative>.
Aneyah Elmore (01:15:56):
Yeah. Yeah, yeah. And honestly, the two of them really did. So Oma put me in the orphanage, um, um, I'm not gonna say the real reason why she put me in the orphanage. Okay,
Adapted Podcast (01:16:20):
Okay.
Aneyah Elmore (01:16:21):
I'm not gonna say the real reason, but she put me in the orphanage. I'm gonna say that bottom line is it saved my life. And so, like I said, it is just, you know, it was much better. I, you know, for me to get be here her life. I can't even imagine what her life was like being young, being young and single, and
(01:16:53):
Her father be by the way that she, he, he was his name somehow or another got onto her birth certificate. I guess if you get married, you know that it goes onto like the registry. And that's what he saw his name and he was upset with her and was like, never wanna see you again. So, you know, but you know, in that it's a rough society when you are having children so young and you're unwed. That's why so many Korean adoptees, because these young women were not married and didn't wanna be disowned. So, but anyway, I just can't even imagine what our lives would've been like. Don't wanna imagine it. Don't wanna,
Adapted Podcast (01:17:47):
So you've been in reunion with your Oma for almost a year and it sounds like it's been kind of up and down.
Aneyah Elmore (01:17:54):
Everything was going great to this one little incident. And, and, and then all of a sudden it was just like excommunication, you know? And then, um, then I, because
Adapted Podcast (01:18:06):
Of, because of this podcast or because of another thing,
Aneyah Elmore (01:18:10):
It wasn't specifically of this podcast, but sh when, when I spoke to her, she said that she was upset with me because of the podcast that I was doing the interview. And I said to her, that was a misunderstanding cuz you weren't listening. I said, this podcast has everything to do with me. Okay? And I told her, I said, um, you gotta understand something. I have a story. I have a life. And I've been doing, sharing my story for a long time now. You know, and, and you're gonna have to understand that if you've got an issue with that, that's on you. She turns her back on me because of something as simple as this or anything else. You don't value me. If you don't value me. We, we can't have a relationship because let me tell you something, I have come this far dealing with reject with rejection issues and, um, abandonment issues that I have learned to stand out for myself. I told you I had that experience and I've now, it's like growth and healing from it. And it's like, I'm not gonna have somebody in my life that's going to keep on rejecting me and abandon me. No, no. Nope. I'm, I can't have that in my life either you're gonna love me or not unconditionally, cuz we might make some mistakes. But the bottom line is, you shut that door on me, continue to shut my, the only thing you gonna do is distance me from you. That's it.
Adapted Podcast (01:19:44):
And so it's been a couple weeks.
Aneyah Elmore (01:19:47):
No, that happened. Um, I think the last part of last week. And then I spoke to her for the first time yesterday and I told her I needed some time because she, she was like, you know, please forgive me. And I was like, yeah, I forgive you. Well, you know, she's like, I love you, you know, um, we'll talk tomorrow. I was like, mm-hmm. <affirmative>. Nope, nope. And it's like, you know, you'll call me. And I was like, Nope, you need to be patient. I just said, be patient. Be patient. Because let me tell you something, ma, I was, I went through crying, I was upset. I cried. I once, so, man, I was that little child. I was that little child that had been abandoned in the orphanage. I went through that for several days, two, three days. I was so hurt. I was so disappointed. And I said, um, I was angry, but the in anger was the disappointment. And I was like, this woman ghosted me. This woman has turned it back on me and abandoned me again. And it was during that timeframe that I had that spiritual experience and came to an understanding and a healing. And I was grateful and I understood the experience. And then I think once I understood and was grateful, learned that lesson. Okay. Learned that lesson because I learned it quickly that she called me.
Adapted Podcast (01:21:28):
Well, let me just understand any, so you mean that just happened a couple weeks ago?
Aneyah Elmore (01:21:34):
Just happened the other day.
Adapted Podcast (01:21:36):
Were
Aneyah Elmore (01:21:37):
Like Friday.
Adapted Podcast (01:21:40):
That
Aneyah Elmore (01:21:41):
Somehow was a week ago.
Adapted Podcast (01:21:43):
A week ago where she, she rejected you again. Yes. Was because not happy that you were wanted to tell your story?
Aneyah Elmore (01:21:52):
It was that it was, um, wanted me to go along with this, understand this fake story us thing, and me being born in the US me and not agreeing with that and trying to put me through guilt and, and, and that because I didn't agree with that. I was standing my ground on that. And then this, you know, that led to, um, you know, I, me explaining, look, um, I have a life, you know, before you came along. And I have to say some pretty low things, and that's not like me, you know, but I had to come to a point of saying, Hey, do you understand you've put me in an orphanage? Do you understand that
(01:22:37):
That's really low? But I had to say it like, do you understand you abandoned me? I said, I'm very forgiving. Do you understand what you did to me? Do you understand the trauma I've had to overcome? And you sitting here ta talking to me and saying all these things, which is so unfair, so unfair. Do you understand how much trauma I've been through in my life, <affirmative> and you, and this conversation is, it was awful. It was awful. And I had to end up, I ended it. I had to say, listen, cooking dinner right now, I, I can't have this conversation anymore. But I had gone through tears and everything and I tears and I, I had enough. But yeah, the interview part came with, I was like, look, you know, I'm not gonna tell a lie because I, I have a public, my life is in private, you see my Instagram page, you know, and, um, I do not have a, I do not. Okay. Let me be honest with you, <laugh>, I've been hold, I've been holding out. She doesn't know this. So I have a video that's going a little viral. Okay. We're, you know, I had the reunion with, okay, okay. One of my cousins saw it, one of my Korean cousins, right. Saw this video and saw her aunt in the video was like, yo, wait a minute. This my aunt, this must be her
Adapted Podcast (01:24:29):
Child. Oh. Because she didn't, hadn't told Yeah. Her Korean family. Right.
Aneyah Elmore (01:24:34):
They knew very little. It was like a vague thing. Oh, okay. But they didn't know anything else. No, they didn't. Just like, oh, she has a child and that's it. Mm-hmm. <affirmative>, nothing else. She saw the video, she contacted her cousin, her cousin contacted me through Instagram and was like, I am shaking right now. I can't believe, you know, and I wanna meet you. I wanna speak to you. You mine, you had a beautiful conversation on the phone. And she said basically, sh my aunt shouldn't be ashamed. We all want to meet you. And, and, and you know, from the relatives I've spoken with, and she said, we wanna you to be a part of our family. We wanna meet you. We wanna have a relationship with you. And she said, well, I'm gonna have to make, you know, I'm gonna have to speak to my ima because, and some of her never bring you up so that she knows that, that I want to, we want you in our lives. Or, so she had that meeting with her and they FaceTimed me both. And then I think two days later, that's when, um, my Omar was like, came at me with this crazy insane conversation. And, um, I haven't told her that a about the video. I haven't told her about the video.
(01:26:12):
No, she does not know about the video. And I, I contemplated taking the video down and I was like, no, I'm not gonna take the video down.
Adapted Podcast (01:26:21):
And how many views? You said it's viral and how many views has it had?
Aneyah Elmore (01:26:27):
Um, there's at least, I think the last time I checked 16, a little over 16,000 mics on it. Wow. Wow. And a whole lot of comments. And, um, I contemplated taking it down. I was like, no, I'm not gonna pick it down. This is my story, you know? And the bottom line is it's inspiring others. It's giving my community hope, you know, and, and until she comes at me and then, and says, shake it down <laugh> and gets upset, and then even then I might not take it down.
Adapted Podcast (01:27:07):
Well, I, are you afraid of anything your oma might hear, you know, when this podcast gets published, are, are you afraid of any,
Aneyah Elmore (01:27:21):
Like I said, um, at this point I'm like this, first of all, this is my story and you, you could choose to love me unconditionally. Okay? Or not, if you're gonna run from the me because you're mad about this, maybe this is a test for you. You know what I mean? Maybe this is so I don't care if you gonna get upset with me for me sharing this truth, you know, because there's some things I did leave out, but, you know, but if you gonna get upset with me and, and whatever, you don't really love me.
Adapted Podcast (01:28:09):
Okay? Well, honey, I really, I, I mean, I really appreciate you taking the time to share with me and for all, everyone in our community and beyond who are listening. I mean, I, and I also wanna say that, um, you know, I never wanna be the cause of strife between, you know, your family. So, you know, this won't air for several weeks. So take some time and let me know, you know, if, if you ever change your mind about this.
Aneyah Elmore (01:28:50):
Thank you for that. Thank, thank you for that. And um, like I said, at this point, it's take it or leave it. I let her know I'm gonna be writing a book about my life. Okay? And I, uh, there are gonna be some things I'm going to have to share about her. And the bottom line is this is where the real test comes. You understand? This is where the real test comes. This is where the truth comes the truth. And I don't, I don't fear it. I do not fear it because I know that my, you know, what's bigger, what's bigger is being able to help other people that are out here, other adoptees that are facing abandonment and rejection issues. That, that's important to me. That is very important to me, okay? Because, um, our mental health matters as a community, as the world in general, if I'm sitting here with abandonment and rejection issues, um, how, how is that affecting my children, my husband, um, society, my mental health. So if I, if I could share my experiences, you know, if I'm cutting little bits and pieces out and, and people can't figure out the whole puzzle, it's the whole point. You know? So bottom line is, is that I, I just met you
Adapted Podcast (01:30:48):
<laugh>. I know, right? <laugh>.
Aneyah Elmore (01:30:51):
Well, you
Adapted Podcast (01:30:52):
Know what I'm saying? Yeah. Her. Oh, okay. Right, right. Oh, you're, you're Oma, right?
Aneyah Elmore (01:30:56):
Right. I just met you. How you gonna come in here and tell me, okay. How to live my life, what I should say and what I shouldn't say. And even if I didn't just meet you. Okay. Bottom line is I'm gonna do me, I'm gonna stand at my truth and authe authenticity there. Anybody likes it or not? Period. <laugh>, I had to throw that in <laugh>.
Adapted Podcast (01:31:29):
End of story. End of story. <laugh>. Okay. Anya, if, um, people wanna get in touch with you, I'm sure they will. Um, how can they do it or follow you?
Aneyah Elmore (01:31:41):
Yeah, yeah. They could follow me on Instagram. I am Anya, which is spelled a n e y a h, and they can always DM me. Like I said, I'm, I'm here to help our
Speaker 4 (01:32:00):
Heal, heal.
Adapted Podcast (01:32:19):
Thank you, Anya. Thanks. Also goes to Jay Gin for our theme music. For more, go to jay gin music.com. Thank you. Also goes to Kimberly Kaminsky and the rest of our patron supporters. Your support continues to lift up one of the first Korean adoptee podcasts ever made. Patron supporters also get early downloads to support. Go to patreon.com/adapted podcast. Every contribution goes right to the podcast. Until next time, take care.
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